
 

 
PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 
  

Thursday, September 14, 2023                                                                              Frankfort Village Hall        
6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Non-Public Hearing: Plat of Resubdivision of Lots 2 and 3 in Iron Gate Estates 

Request:  Preliminary and Final Plat of Subdivision of Lots 2 and 3 in Iron Gate Estates (PINs: 19-09-21-
121-012-0000; 19-09-21-121-011-0000).   
 

4. Public Hearing: 108 Walnut Street – Ruzich Residence (Ref#104) Public Hearing continued from 
PC/ZBA meeting on September 7, 2023 
Requests:  Six (6) zoning variations to construct a new single-family residence, pertaining to a reduced front 
yard setback, reduced side yard setbacks, increased lot coverage, increased impervious lot coverage and 
first-floor building materials (PIN: 19-09-28-211-006-0000). 
 

5. Public Comments 
 
6. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
7. Other Business 

 
8. Attendance Confirmation (September 28, 2023) 

 
9. Adjournment 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 
shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 
items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 
persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 
forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



  1 

                                           

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                       September 14, 2023 

 
Project: Plat of Resubdivision which consolidates Lots 2 & 3 in Iron Gate Estates Subdivision 
Meeting Type:  Non-Public Hearing 
Request: Request for approval of a resubdivision to consolidate lots 
Location: Lots 2 &3 in Iron Gate Estates Subdivision 
Applicant:  Mark Finney and Gina Finney 
Prop. Owner:  Applicant 
Representative:  Applicant 
Report By:  Amanda Martinez, Planner 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: ±0.71 Acres / ±30,767 sq. ft.                                                            Figure 1: Location Map  

PIN(s): 19-09-21-121-012-0000 and 19-09-21-121-011-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2 
Prop.  Zoning: N/A       
Building(s) / Lot(s): 1 proposed lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
      
  

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Single-family Residential    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

North  Single-family Residential 
 

Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

South Single-family Residential     Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

East Single-family Residential    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

West Single-family Residential 
(detention pond) 

   Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicants, Mark and Gina Finney, are requesting approval of the proposed Plat of Resubdivision which consolidates 
Lots 2 & 3 in Iron Gate Estates Subdivision. The existing Lot 2 (19-09-21-121-012-0000) measures 107.81 ft. wide by 
151 ft. deep and the existing Lot 3 (19-09-21-121-011-0000) measures 109.97 ft. wide by 155 ft. deep.  The 
applicant has submitted a plat that proposes the consolidation of Lots 2 and 3 in Iron Gate Estates Subdivision 
resulting in Lot 1, a ±30,767 sq. ft. lot to accommodate construction of a home. 

Attachments 

• 2022 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
• Final Plat of Subdivision of Iron Gate Estates (approved August 2017) 
• Lot 2 Plat of Survey dated 11.18.20 and received 8.11.23 
• Lot 3 Plat of Survey 11.18.20 and received 8.11.23 
• Site Visit Photographs taken on 8.11.23 
• Plat of Resubdivision (titled “Final Plat of Iron Gate Estates, Phase III”) dated 7.19.17 and received 7.18.23 
• Plat Review Comments sent from staff to the applicant on 7.26.23  

 
 
 



  2 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the consolidation request, staff offers the following point of discussion: 
 
Existing Lots 2 & 3: 

 
• Lots 2 and 3 are currently undeveloped in the Iron Gate Estates Subdivision which was approved 

in August 2017. 
 

• The existing Lot 2 measures 107.81 ft. wide by 151 ft. deep (15,666 sq. ft.).  
 

• The existing Lot 3 measures 109.97 ft. wide by 155 ft. deep (15,101 sq. ft.).  
 

• The two existing lots are individually conforming. Both lots comply with the current Zoning 
Ordinance’s minimum requirements for bulk and density within the R-2 Single-family Residential 
District including the 15,000 sq. ft. minimum lot size, 100 ft. minimum lot width and 150 ft. 
minimum lot depth. 

 
Proposed Lot 1 (Plat of Resubdivision): 
 

• There are necessary technical revisions that will need to be made to the proposed Plat of 
Resubdivision titled “Final Plat of Iron Gate Estates, Phase III” prepared by Steven J. Laub, Illinois 
Professional Land Surveyor, dated December 7, 2020, and received by the Village on July 18, 2023. 
Attached to this staff report are the Plat Review Comments that were sent to the applicant on July 
26, 2023 that outline the necessary revisions that staff has requested the applicant to make.   
 

• The resulting Lot 1 is proposed to measure 217.78 ft. wide by 151.1 ft. deep, or ±30,767 sq. ft. The 
resulting Lot 1 meets and exceeds the minimum requirements for bulk and density within the R-2 
Single-family Residential District including the 15,000 sq. ft. minimum lot size, 100 ft. minimum lot 
width and 150 ft. minimum lot depth.  
 

• The proposed plat notes that the included property for the Resubdivision will remain subject to 
the same setbacks and easements as stated on the Final Plat of Subdivision of Iron Gate Estates. 
 

• Staff has requested that a note be added to the plat stating that the lot shall remain subject to the 
recorded covenants and restrictions of the Iron Gate Estates Subdivision. 
 

    
R-2 
District 
Requirements 
  

  
Existing Property 
Conditions  
of Lot 2 

  
Existing Property 
Conditions  
of Lot 3 

  
Proposed Property 
Conditions  
of Lot 1 (proposed 
Plat of 
Resubdivision) 

  
Comments 

Minimum Lot Size  
(Square feet)  

  
15,000 sq. ft. 
  

  
15,666 sq. ft. 
  

  
15,101 sq. ft. 
  

  
30,767 sq. ft. 
  

  
Complies 

Minimum  
Lot Width  
(feet) 

  
100 feet 

  
107.81 feet 

  
 109.97 feet 
  

  
 217.78 feet 
  

Complies 

Minimum            



  3 

Lot Depth  
(feet) 

150 feet 
  

151 feet 155 feet  151.1 feet Complies 

Minimum 
Required Setbacks 
(feet) 
  
  

  
• 30 feet 
• 30 feet 
• Total 25 

feet (not 
less than 
10 on 
each side) 

• 30 feet  

  
• 30 feet 
• N/A 
• 12.5 

feet 
• 30 feet  

  

  
• 30 feet 
• N/A 
• 12.5 

feet 
• 30 feet  

  

  
• 30 feet  
• N/A 
• 12.5 feet 
• 30 feet 

  

  
 Complies  
(Interior lot= no 
corner side yard 
requirement) 

P.U.&D.E. 
Easement 
(feet) 

• Front 
• Interior 
• Rear 

  
• 10 feet 
• 7.5 feet 
• 10 feet  

  
• 10 feet 
• 7.5 feet 
• 10 feet 

  
• 10 feet 
• 7.5 feet 
• 10 feet  

  
• 10 feet 
• 7.5 feet 
• 10 feet 

  

  
Complies 
(matches Iron 
Gate Estates 
Subdivision 
easements) 

 
Affirmative Motion    

For the Commission’s consideration, staff is providing the following proposed affirmative motion: 

1. Recommend the Village Board approve the proposed Plat of Resubdivision, which consolidates Lots 2 & 3 
in Iron Gate Estates Subdivision, subject to staff approval of any necessary technical revisions prior to 
recording. 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.07

1: 2,257

0 Miles

Lots 2 & 3 of Iron Gate Estates Subdivision

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

8/14/2023 Date:

0.04

Parcels

Townships









West View:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



South View: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



North View: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



East View: 

 





Good A�ernoon Mr. and Mrs. Finney, 
 
The Village of Frankfort Community and Economic Development Department has reviewed the 
drawing �tled “Final Plat of Iron Gate Estates, Phase III” prepared by Steven J. Laub, Illinois 
Professional Land Surveyor, dated December 7, 2020, and received by the Village on July 18, 2023. 
Please coordinate with the project Land Surveyor to address the following comments: 
 
1. Re-�tle the drawing “Preliminary and Final Plat of Resubdivision of Lots 2 and 3 in Iron Gate Estates 
Subdivision” to be consistent with previous similar plats in the Village.  Since this consolida�on does 
not add acreage to the original subdivision, there is no need to state “Phase III” in the �tle, as there 
was only one phase. 
2. Please confirm the owner/taxpayer contact info below the text “Send Future Tax Bills To:”. 
3. Replace the Owner’s Cer�ficate, Tax Mapping and Pla�ng Cer�ficate, and Surveyor Cer�ficate 
with the exact wording adopted by the Village under Ordinance No. 2392 Amending the Village of 
Frankfort Design Standards, found in Appendix C (Document Page 120, PDF Page 121) found on the 
Village of Frankfort web site here: 
htps://files4.1.revize.com/frankfor�l/documents/engineering/2008- 
Design_Standards.pdf  
4. Please remove the incorrect reference to Iron Gate Estates, Phase II in the Owner’s Cer�ficate.  
5. Surveyor’s license has been expired since November 30, 2020, please update with an ac�ve 
license. 
6. If there is a mortgage on the property, add the required Mortgagee Cer�ficate if applicable 
(use Village wording). 
7. Confirm and add any addi�onal cer�ficates and other informa�on required by the Will County 
Recorder per the Recording Guidelines found here: htps://recorder.dnn4less.net/Recording- 
Guidelines 
8. Add a note sta�ng that the property included in the resubdivision remains subject to the 
recorded covenants and restric�ons of the Iron Gate Estates Subdivision. 
9. Add the same Village Public U�lity and Drainage Easement (P.U&D.E) provisions as stated on 
the recorded plat for Iron Gate Estates Subdivision to coincide with the easements that are 
depicted on the drawing. 
10. Add the same private U�lity Easement provisions as stated on the recorded plat for Iron Gate 
Estates Subdivision (electric, phone, natural gas, cable television). 
 
A�er these revisions are made, please send me an electronic version (PDF) of the plat. 
The proposed plat will need to be presented to the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals. I 
would need the revised drawing no later than July 31, 2023, to be included in the agenda packet. 
for the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals mee�ng on August 10, 2023. Please contact me if 
you have any ques�ons. 



                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                                                                                   S                                   August 10, 2023 

 
Project: Ruzich Residence  
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing  
Request: 6 Variations related to the tear down/rebuild of a single-family home 
Location: 108 Walnut Street 
Applicant:  Jim Sleeman  
Prop. Owner:  Sleeman Construction, Inc.   
Representative: Jim Sleeman 
Staff Reviewer:   Christopher Gruba, Senior Planner 
Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 6,376 sq. ft.                                                Figure 1. Location Map     
PIN(s): 19-09-28-211-006-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2   
Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Buildings / Lots: 1 house w/ attached garage 
Proposed house: 2,801 sq. ft. (not including garage) 
Proposed garage:  500 sq. ft. (attached to house) 
  
 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Jim Sleeman, seeks to construct a new single-family home to replace the existing smaller home on 
the lot.  The architect has described the style of the proposed house as Modern Farmhouse.  The house would 
have a full basement. To accommodate the proposed new house, the applicant is requesting the following six (6) 
variations:    
 

1. Front Yard Setback 
2. Side Yard Setback (north) 
3. Side Yard Setback (south) 
4. Maximum Lot Coverage 
5. Impervious Lot Coverage 
6. 1st Floor Building Materials 

 
Attachments 

1. Lot Coverage and Impervious Lot Coverage comparison table with other new homes in the downtown 
2. Location Map, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scales at 1:1,500 and 1:500.  
3. Existing Storm Sewer Map of Downtown Area 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property     Residential Single-Family R-2 

North Residential  Single-Family R-2/R-4 

South  Residential Single-Family R-2 

East Residential Single-Family R-2 

West Residential Single-Family R-2 

1



4. Downtown Boundary Map (excerpt from 2019 Comprehensive Plan) with subject property noted 
5. Downtown Residential Guidelines (Quick Checklist excerpt) 
6. Variance Findings of Fact, submitted by applicant  
7. PC/ZBA minutes from workshop meeting on April 27, 2023 (excerpt) 
8. Photographs of newer homes in the immediate area, provided by applicant:  

a. 117 Maple 
b. 122 Walnut 
c. 140 Walnut 

9. Submittal prepared by Ideal Designs, received 7.25.23, containing the following: 
a. Site Plan 
b. Survey 
c. Building Elevations 
d. Floor Plans 
e. 3D architectural color rendering of house, with adjacent homes for comparison  
f. Color overhead view of proposed house with lot lines 

    
History 
 
This project was reviewed as a workshop on April 27th, 2023.  At that time, 6 variations were also requested.  The 
current variation requests are listed below:   
 

Variation Request 
Code 

Requirement Existing House Current Plans 
Front Yard Setback 30' 21.88' 21.8' 
Side Yard Setback (North) 10' (25' both) 6.1' 8.5' 
Side Yard Setback (South) 10' (25' both) 6.2' 4.9' 
Lot Coverage 20% max 22.7% (1,449 SF) 36.7% (2,339 SF) 
Impervious Lot Coverage 40% max 30.4% (1,941 SF) 45.2% (2,881 SF) 
First Floor Building Materials Full Masonry Wood Wood Composite 

 
 

Main Changes to the Plans since the Workshop 
 
The architecture has largely remained the same. The project received minor changes since the workshop meeting:  
 

1. The house was shrunk slightly from a footprint of 2,372 SF to 2,339 SF.  
2. The house was shifted slightly south, to provide the Fire Code separation requirement of 10’ between the 

proposed house and the existing house to the north.  In doing so, the house was also moved 0.4’ closer to 
the south side property line.   

3. The driveway was narrowed from 18’ to 16’ wide.  
4. The rear yard sidewalk connection from the patio to the driveway was changed from concrete to 

individual patio blocks.  
 
Analysis 
 

Existing Home, Non-Conformities  

The existing home and lot have several existing non-conforming features:   

1. The R-2 zone district requires a minimum lot size of 15,000 square feet, 100’ width and 150’ depth.  The 
existing lot is 6,376 square feet in area, 50’ wide and 129.74’ deep and is therefore non-conforming 

2



regarding lot size, width and depth.  Since the subject property is a singular lot of record (platted as Lot 3 
in Block 8 in the Original Town of Frankfort), nor is there a need to dedicate any additional right-of-way, a 
Plat of Resubdivision is not required, and therefore a variation is not required to permit a new undersized 
lot pursuant to Article 6, Section B of the Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The existing house is set back 21.88’ from the front property line, whereas 30’ is required.  
3. The existing house is set back 6.1’ and 6.2’ from the north and south side property lines respectively, 

whereas at least 10’ is required on each side with a total of 25’ on both sides.   
4. The existing house and garage result in a lot coverage of 22.7%, exceeding the maximum coverage of 20%.   
5. The Village ordinance requires two-story homes within the R-2 zone district provide a minimum square 

footage of 2,600 square feet of floor area (1st and 2nd floor areas).  The existing house is 1,308 square 
feet in livable area and is considered existing, non-conforming.   

6. The existing detached garage is set back 5.36’ from the north side property line, whereas the minimum 
required setback is 10’.   

7. The existing gravel driveway is located approximately 3’ from the side property line, whereas at least 5’ is 
required.  Driveways must meet this setback requirement whether they are paved or gravel.   

8. The existing house has wood siding, whereas the entire 1st floor is required to be wrapped in masonry.   
 
Proposed Home – Requested Variations: 

1. House Front Yard Setback 
 
The following tables list the approximate front yard setbacks of the homes on both sides of Maple Street between 
Kansas Street and Pacific Street:  

  

  
Address 

(West Side) 
Setback to 

Walnut (ft.) 
  Address 

(East Side) 
Setback to 

Walnut (ft.) 

Walnut 16 11 Kansas 144 5 
Nebraska 203 15 Nebraska 143 19 
Nebraska 200 16 Nebraska 144 9 
(existing) 108 22 Walnut 115 9 
Walnut 112 15 Walnut 119 8 
Walnut 122 19 Walnut 133 22 
Walnut 130 17 Walnut 139 17 
Walnut 140 14 Walnut 143 18 
Walnut 142 15 Walnut 151 17 
Walnut 150 18 Utah 142 14 
Walnut 202 16 Walnut 213 20 
Walnut 210 15 Walnut 223 12 
Walnut 216 24 Walnut 231 13 
Walnut 228 16 Walnut 233 12 
Walnut 234 15 Walnut 235 10 
Walnut 236 25 Walnut 245 17 
Walnut 250 26 Walnut 255 34 

Walnut 256 22       

Avg.   17.8     15.1 

 
    

 
 Avg. both sides:    16.4  

3



The proposed setback of 21.8’ from the front property line is greater than the average existing setback on 
either side of Walnut Street.  
 

2. Side Yard Setback (North) 
 

a) The proposed house would be set back 8.5’ from the north side property line, whereas at least 10’ is 
required.  The north side of the house does have a fireplace that projects 2’ into the side yard setback.  
Fireplaces that are 2’ deep or less are exempt from the house setback requirements.   
 

b) The current plans have shifted the house south slightly, to provide a 10’ separation between the house 
and the existing house to the north.  10’ is required for fire safety in the Building Code.  
 

3. Side Yard Setback (South) 
 

a) There is a jog in the south side property line closer to the public alley.  The proposed house would be set 
back 4.9’ from the south property line, where the property line jogs closer to the house.  The majority of 
the house would be set back 7.9’ from the south side property line, whereas 10’ is required.  

 
4. Lot Coverage 

 
a) The Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum lot coverage of 20% for a two-story home 

within the R-2 zoning district resulting in a maximum permitted coverage of 1,275.2 square feet for the 
subject property.  Structures with roofs count toward lot coverage.   
 

b) The former home and garage amounted to approximately 1,449 square feet for a 22.7% lot coverage and 
was considered existing, non-conforming.  
 

c) The proposed home and detached garage equate to a lot coverage of 2,339 square feet (36.7%), in excess 
of ordinance requirements, requiring a variation.  

 
5. Impervious Lot Coverage 

 
a) The Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum impervious lot coverage of 40% for homes 

within the R-2 zoning district resulting in a permitted coverage of 2,550.4 square feet for the subject 
property.  The house, driveway and sidewalk count toward impervious lot coverage.  
 

b) The former home, garage, driveway and concrete walks amounted to approximately 1,941 square feet for 
a 30.4% impervious lot coverage and was considered existing, non-conforming. 

 
c) The proposed home and detached garage equate to an impervious lot coverage of 2,881 square feet 

(45.2%), in excess of ordinance requirements and will require a variation.  
 

6. First Floor Building Materials variation 

a) The Zoning Ordinance requires that the entire 1st floor of all homes within the R-2 zoning district be 
constructed of masonry (brick, stone, etc.).  The proposed house would be primarily faced with LP Smart 
Siding (wood composite) with accents of board & batten siding.  
 

b) Most of the homes along both sides of Walnut Street between Kansas Street and Pacific Street are non-
masonry in construction.  There are 35 homes that have frontage on Walnut Street. Of those, 10 are of 
masonry construction, or 29%.     

 
2019 Comprehensive Plan:  

108 Walnut is located within the Downtown area, as illustrated in the Residential Design Guidelines in the 2019 
Comprehensive Plan.  Although the guidelines are not enforceable, they can be used to judge the merits of 

4



proposed residential projects in the downtown area.  Staff has offered brief responses as to whether the proposed 
house renovations meet the intent of the Residential Design Guidelines.  
 
Elements that appear to comply with the Downtown Residential Design Guidelines:  
 

1. The garage utilizes the adjacent public alley (page B-13).  
2. The house employs high-quality wood composite materials (page B-2).  
3. The building’s architecture delineates the primary entrance.  Entryway features including covered porches 

are desirable (page B-4).  
4. The house employs similar architectural elements and detailing on all sides of the home (page B-5).  
5. The new construction mostly respects the established front yard setbacks within the area (page B-18).  

 
Elements that don’t appear to comply with the Downtown Residential Design Guidelines:  
 

1. Houses should be sized appropriately for their lots and in relation to neighboring homes (page B-2).  The 
proposed house would require a lot coverage variation to allow 36.7% instead of 20% and may not be 
considered an appropriate size.   

2. Modern house styles should be avoided (page B-2).  The proposed house style of “Modern Farmhouse” is 
not one of the recommended architectural styles (page B-5).  

 
Dwelling Size:  

1. The Village ordinance requires that two-story homes within the R-2 zone district provide a minimum 
square footage of 2,600 square feet of floor area (1st and 2nd floor areas).  The existing house is 914 
square feet in livable area (not including the detached garage) and is considered existing, non-conforming.  
The proposed house would be 2,801 square feet (not including the attached garage), meeting this 
requirement.  

 
Existing Trees: 

 
1. The applicant has indicated to staff that all of the existing trees on the property would be removed.  There 

are several evergreen trees and one very large Silver Maple on the property.  None of the trees are 
classified as “preservation trees” in the Landscape Ordinance and therefore do not require mitigation.     

2. There are 2 street trees within the existing right-of-way between the sidewalk and the curb of Walnut 
Street that should remain.  Staff recommends adding this as a condition of approval.   

 
Past Variation Approvals in the Downtown Area: 

For reference, the following addresses in the downtown have received variations for building additions or site 
improvements:  
 
215 Kansas (Gallagher) (PC review 8.14.08) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 4,950 
Lot Width: 100’ min 50’ 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 100’ 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Lot Coverage: 38.3% (20% max permitted) 
2. First floor building materials for accessory structure (masonry required) 
3. Detached garage side yard setback: 0’ (10’ required) 

 
147 White Street (Lalley) (PC review 7.8.10) 

5



 
Standard Provided 

Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 21,484 
Lot Width: 100’ min 130’  
Lot Depth: 150’ min 165’   

 
Variation granted:  
 

1. Detached garage setback 6.5’ from side property line (10’ required) 
 
44 W. Bowen Street (Carroll/Watson) (PC review 8.12.10) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 16,175 
Lot Width: 100’ min 100’ (approximately) 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 160’ (approximately) 

 
Variation granted:  
 

1. Accessory structure (shed) 0’ setback from rear property line (10’ required) 
 
210 Walnut (Winters) (PC review 3.10.11) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 11,044 
Lot Width: 100’ min 90’ (approximate) 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 130’ (approximate) 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Front yard setback: 19’ (30’ required) 
2. Building height: 36’ (35’ max permitted) 
3. Lot Coverage: 29% (20% max permitted) 
4. Driveway setback: 2’ (5’ required) 
5. First floor building materials (masonry required) 
6. Accessory structure setback: 2’ to both north and west property lines (10’ required)  

 
200 W. Nebraska (Leonard) (PC review 11.8.12) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 7,000 
Lot Width: 100’ min 70’ 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 100’ 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Lot Coverage: 34% (20% max permitted) 
2. Driveway setback: 0’ (5’ required) 
3. Detached garage setback: 0’ from south lot line, 4.1’ from west lot line (10’ required) 
4. Detached garage height: 21’ 4” (15’ max permitted) 

6



 
23 W. Bowen Street (Gander) (PC review 8.22.13) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 8,720 
Lot Width: 100’ min 52’ (approximately) 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 172’ (approximately) 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Side yard setback: 6.4’ (10’ required) 
2. Lot Coverage: 26% (20% max permitted) 
3. Driveway setback: 2’ (5’ required) 
4. First floor building materials (masonry required) 
5. Accessory structure setback from side property line: 5’ (10’ required) 

 
140 Maple (Triezenberg) (PC review 9.8.16) 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 6,250 
Lot Width: 100’ min 50’ (approximately) 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 130’ (approximately) 

 
Variation granted:  
 

1. Driveway setback 0’ (5’ required) 
 
140 Walnut (McLean) (PC review 1.25.18) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 6,275 
Lot Width: 100’ min 50’ 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 125.5’ 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Front yard setback: 15.67’ (30’ required) 
2. Side yard setback: 5’ (10’ required) 
3. Lot coverage: 33.5% (20% max permitted) 
4. First floor building materials (masonry required) 

 
213 Kansas (Kirsch) (PC review 1.24.19) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 6,183 
Lot Width: 100’ min 61.83' 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 100’ 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Front yard setback: 13.4' (30’ required) 

7



2. Side yard setbacks: of 10' and 10' (at least 25’ total both sides required) 
3. Rear yard setback: 15.1' (30’ required) 
4. Lot coverage: 30% (20% max permitted) 
5. Driveway setback: 0.5' (5’ required) 
6. First floor building materials (masonry required) 

 
143 Kansas Street (Brown) (PC review 3.25.21) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 5,000 
Lot Width: 100’ min 50’  
Lot Depth: 150’ min 100’ 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Front yard setback: 10’ (30’ required) 
2. Side yard setback: 5’ (13’ required)  
3. Detached garage setback from rear property line: 0.5’ (10’ required) 
4. Detached garage setback from side property line: 2’ (10 required) 
5. Driveway setback: 2’ (5’ required) 
6. Lot coverage: 41% (20% max permitted) 
7. Impervious lot coverage: 46% (40% max permitted) 
8. First floor building materials (masonry required) 

 
240 Center Road (Oltman) (PC review 9.22.22) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 38,350 
Lot Width: 100’ min 100’ 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 370.4’ 

 
Variations granted:  
 

1. Driveway setback from side property line: 1’ (4’ required) 
2. Driveway turning radius: 25’ (26’ required) 
3. First floor building materials (masonry required) 

 
 
213 Nebraska (Plantz) (PC review 7.27.23, Board review scheduled for 8.7.23) 
 

Standard Provided 
Lot Size: 15,000 SF min 6,687 
Lot Width: 100’ min 67.5’ 
Lot Depth: 150’ min 99.1’ 

 
Variations requested:  
 

1. Front yard setback: 12’ 5 ¾” (30’ required) 
2. 1st Floor building materials (masonry required) 
3. Accessory building setback (detached garage): 5’ 7” (10’ required) 
4. Rear Yard Coverage: 32% (30% max) 
5. Lot Coverage: 32.8% (20% max) 

8



6. Impervious Lot Coverage: 41.9% (40% max) 
7. Detached Garage Height: 20’ 5 ½” (15’ max) 
8. Minimum dwelling unit area: 2,511 SF (2,600 SF min) 

 
Affirmative Motions 
 

1. Recommend the Village Board approve the variation request to permit a front yard setback of 21.8’ 
instead of 30’, on the property located at 108 Walnut Street, in accordance with the reviewed plans, 
public testimony, and Findings of Fact, conditioned upon preserving the two existing trees within the 
right-of-way of Walnut Street.    
 

2. Recommend the Village Board approve the variation request to permit a 8.5’ north side yard setback 
instead of 10’, on the property located at 108 Walnut Street, in accordance with the reviewed plans,  
public testimony, and Findings of Fact.    

 
3. Recommend the Village Board approve the variation request to permit a 4.9’ south side yard setback 

instead of 10’, on the property located at 108 Walnut Street, in accordance with the reviewed plans,  
public testimony, and Findings of Fact.    

 
4. Recommend the Village Board approve the variation request to permit a lot coverage of 36.7%, 

instead of 20%, on the property located at 108 Walnut Street, in accordance with the reviewed plans,  
public testimony, and Findings of Fact.    

 
5. Recommend the Village Board approve the variation request to permit an impervious lot coverage of 

45.2%, instead of 40%, on the property located at 108 Walnut Street, in accordance with the 
reviewed plans,  public testimony, and Findings of Fact.    
 

6. Recommend the Village Board approve the variation request to permit non-masonry siding (LP Smart 
Siding) on the entire 1st floor of the building, instead of masonry, on the property located at 108 
Walnut Street, in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact.    

 
 

 
 

9



Applicant Comparison Comparison Comparison Comparison Comparison Comparison
Address 108 Walnut 143 Kansas 213 Nebraska 213 Kansas 140 Walnut 23 W. Bowen 25 Carpenter
Name Ruzich Brown Plantz Kirsch McLean Gander Kerley
Lot Size (SF) 6,376             5,000             6,687                 6,183             6,275             8,720                 8,000               6,811       
Existing (Original) Lot Coverage (%) 22.7% 38.0% 24.0% 21.7% 28.5% 15.3% 18.0% 24.3%
Proposed Lot Coverage (%) 36.7% 41.0% 32.8% 30.0% 33.5% 26.0% 29.0% 32.1%
Lot Coverage % Difference (increased) 14.0% 3.0% 8.8% 8.3% 5.0% 10.7% 11.0% 7.8%
Existing (Original) Impervious Lot Coverage (%) 30.4% 41.0% 41.0% 41.0%
Proposed Impervious Lot Coverage (%) 45.2% 46.0% 41.9% 44.0%
Impervious Lot Coverage % Difference (increased) 14.8% 5.0% 0.9% N/A N/A N/A N/A

Applicant Comparison Comparison Comparison Comparison Comparison Comparison
Address 108 Walnut 143 Kansas 213 Nebraska 213 Kansas 140 Walnut 23 W. Bowen 25 Carpenter
Name Ruzich Brown Plantz Kirsch McLean Gander Kerley
Lot Size (SF) 6,376             5,000             6,687                 6,183             6,275             8,720                 8,000               6,811       

Maximum Lot Coverage Permitted (For 2‐story home) 20.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%
Proposed Lot Coverage (%) 36.7% 41.0% 32.8% 30.0% 33.5% 26.0% 29.0% 32.1%
Lot Coverage % Difference (increased) 16.7% 21.0% 12.8% 10.0% 13.5% 6.0% 9.0% 12.1%
Maximum Impervious Lot Coverage Permitted 40.0% 40.0% 40.0%
Proposed Impervious Lot Coverage (%) 45.2% 46.0% 41.9% 44.0%
Impervious Lot Coverage % Difference (increased) 5.2% 6.0% 1.9% N/A N/A N/A N/A

Average 
of other 
homes

Average 
of other 
homes

No variance No variance No variance No variance

Percentage Increase Over Initial Coverage

Percentage Increase Over the Maximum Permitted per Code

No variance No variance No variance No variance

10



S MAPLE ST

WALNUT ST

HICKORY ST

KANSAS ST

OREGON ST

W NEBRASKA ST

N
MA

PL
E

ST

KANSAS ST

OREGON ST

0 250 500125
Feet

µ
108 Walnut - house tear down/rebuild

11



WA
LN

UT
 S

T

W NEBRASKA ST

0 75 15037.5
Feet

µ
108 Walnut - house tear down/rebuild

12



Exis�ng Storm Sewer Map 

 

 

13

cgruba
Callout
108 Walnut



 

Downtown Frankfort Boundary Map

(Downtown Residential Design Guidelines - 2019 Comp Plan)

14

cgruba
Rectangle

cgruba
Callout
Subject property



B-4
YOUR FUTURE YOUR FRANKFORT

The Village of Frankfort | 2040 Comprehensive Plan

B | downtown residential design guidelines

QUICK CHECKLIST

The set of questions listed below are framed in such a way that if 
your answer is “yes” - it is likely that the design is on the right track 
towards contributing to the type of character and quality Frankfort 
seeks to maintain. The photos shown to the right are examples of 
residences that fulfill these design ideals. If the answer is not clear, 
or is questionable, you should look for ways to improve upon this 
design element.

Note: All new residential construction, building additions, and 
development in general must comply with the Zoning Ordi-
nance regulations including but not limited to setbacks, height, 
lot coverage, and building materials.

1.  Does the building architecture complement and fit the character of 
surrounding  structures - consider scale, setback, building height?

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

2   Does the structure’s architecture delineate and highlight the 
primary entrance? 

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

3.   Are the proposed building materials consistent with the intended 
architectural style of the home and complementary to the 
materials utilized on the homes in the surrounding area?

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

4.  Are simplified roof forms provided that are consistent with both 
the intended architectural style and roof forms of homes in the 
surrounding area? 

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

5.  Are there step-backs to the facade and / or architectural details that 
add depth and dimension, i.e. porches, bay windows?

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

6.   Are there interesting architectural details and landscape 
treatments integrated on site that complement the residence?

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

7.  Are the predominate facade colors / building materials of a 
natural color palette that is complementary to the homes in the 
surrounding area.

  Yes 
  No
  Maybe

15



16



17



 

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 4/27/23 | Page 10 

 

The applicant explained that they had proposed installing turf on top of the asphalt 

because some of the children they worked with would put things in their mouth, and they 

did not want those children to ingest things that weren’t edible, such as mulch.  

Commissioner James said that he thought the turf and sand fill option seemed like the 

best idea. He also suggested that they look for opportunities to keep play equipment out 

of the sun, so that the play area did not appear neglected.  

The applicant said that they replace toys when they become outdated.  

Commissioner James said he had no concerns about the existing parking. He asked if 

Action Behavior Centers had set drop off and pick up times.  

The applicant said that some kids would start at 8:00, 8:15, or 9:00, while others may 

only come in the afternoon for half-days. Some might be dropped off by a school bus and 

added that there were dedicated spots for drop off. 

Chair Rigoni asked if traffic moving on and off the site functioned like the KinderCare to 

the east. 

The applicant said that it did. 

Chair Rigoni asked how tall the proposed fence would be.  

The applicant said it would be four feet tall, and that they were open to different designs 

of the outdoor area if needed.  

Commissioner Knieriem suggested having a strip of landscaping between the drive aisle 

of the parking lot and the proposed play area. That would provide a curb and plants as 

additional barriers for traffic.  

Chair Rigoni said that she would not want her child to not feel like they were playing in a 

parking lot. She added that the building was occupied. 

G. Workshop: 108 Walnut Street – Demolition and New Home Construction 

Chris Gruba gave the staff report. 

The applicant, Gabriel Garcia of Ideal Designs, and Jim Sleeman, the builder, approached 

the stand.  

Chair Rigoni asked for comments about the proposed front yard setback.  

The Plan Commissioners had no concerns with the proposed front yard setback request. 

Chair Rigoni asked what the side yard setbacks were for the existing home. 

18

cgruba
Highlight

cgruba
Highlight



 

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 4/27/23 | Page 11 

 

The builder said that they were 6.2 feet on either side.  

The applicant added that the setbacks they were proposing were larger than the existing 

home, though the setback on the south yard were different due to the strange shape of the 

lot in the southwest corner.  

Commissioner James asked if the proposed side yard setback would be 8.3 on the south 

yard if the lot were not an irregular shape. 

The applicant said that it would be, yes.  

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any other comments on the proposed side yard setbacks.  

Commissioner Knieriem said that the side yard setbacks they were proposing were better 

than what currently existed on the lot.  

Commissioner Markunas agreed. 

Commissioner James asked how much space there would be between the proposed 

garage and the garage on the property to the south.  

Chair Rigoni asked if a certain amount of space was required between the two structures 

by the Fire District. 

Chris Gruba said he was unsure if there was such a requirement. 

Chair Rigoni asked staff to make sure that the proposed home met that requirement if it 

existed.  

Commissioner Schaeffer asked if the existing screen fence on the north side of the house 

would remain. 

The applicant said that it would. 

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any comments on the proposed lot coverage and 

impervious coverage variations. She recalled talking at length about those requests when 

the Plan Commission was considering the property at 217 Nebraska Street, which sat on a 

similarly sized lot.  

The builder noted that the home at 140 Walnut Street had a smaller setback. 

Commissioner Schaeffer excused herself from the dais at 8:22 P.M.  

Chair Rigoni asked for comments about the proposed lot coverage and impervious lot 

coverage variations. She asked staff what was included in the impervious lot coverage 

calculation other than the proposed home.  

19



 

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 4/27/23 | Page 12 

 

Chris Gruba stated that the driveway and sidewalks were included in the impervious lot 

coverage calculation. The sidewalks were narrowed to try and reduce the total impervious 

area.  

There was some discussion of a rear yard setback which the applicant had initially 

proposed to staff, but which was dropped prior to the workshop. 

The builder added that the impervious lot coverage also included the proposed porches.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked if the proposed pavers were counted towards the 

impervious lot coverage calculation. 

Commissioner Schaeffer returned to the dais at 8:24 P.M.  

Commissioner Markunas stated that he thought the requested amount of impervious area 

was high when he first saw it, but acknowledged that the lot was undersized for the R-2 

zone district.  

There was some discussion of previous cases the Plan Commission had considered that 

had similar lot dimensions.  

Commissioner Knieriem said that he was a stickler for the impervious lot coverage 

requirements in the downtown area because flooding was a big issue around there. He 

asked if there were any nearby storm sewers.  

Chris Gruba said he was unsure. 

The builder said he could connect the gutters to storm sewers if it was needed. 

There was some more discussion on stormwater drainage. 

Chair Rigoni asked what changes could be made to the proposed plans to reduce the 

impervious lot coverage. She suggested that the driveway might be keeping the 

impervious lot coverage figure high.  

The applicant said that he could make the driveway shorter, but that they would then need 

to request a variation for the rear yard setback.  

Commissioner James noted that the proposed porch and patio were both of reasonable 

sizes. Those had both been points of discussion with a previous case. The current 

proposal appeared to have a high impervious lot coverage because of the large home and 

large driveway.  

The builder said that a detached garage would not really work for the proposed home. 

Other homes nearby had attached garages. They could shorten the driveway by changing 

to a detached garage, but it would not have a large impact on the impervious lot coverage.  

20



 

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 4/27/23 | Page 13 

 

Chair Rigoni said that she thought the attached/detached garage situation was less of an 

issue since the garage was located in the rear of the home.  

There was some discussion about whether pavers were counted as impervious surface.  

Commissioner Schaeffer said that she wanted to know how the current proposal 

compared to past proposals proportionately. 

The builder noted that they were giving up a lot of lot area for the required side yards, 

nearly a third of the total lot area.  

Chair Rigoni said that each proposal in the area which had requested a variation from the 

impervious lot coverage requirement was asking for a larger and larger variation. She 

wanted to understand the progression of those requests over time.  

Commissioner James noted that the property at 143 Kansas Street had proposed more 

impervious lot coverage on a smaller lot.  

Commissioner Schaeffer said that she was more concerned about the impervious lot 

coverage request than the lot coverage request, since the former had more to do with 

stormwater infiltration and flooding.  

There was some discussion about moving the house further back on the lot to shorten the 

driveway.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked Chair Rigoni if she was more concerned about the 

proposed setbacks or the proposed impervious lot coverage.  

Chair Rigoni said she was more concerned about the impervious lot coverage. The 

proposed setbacks would improve the impact of the property on the overall streetscape. 

This was not the case with the impervious lot coverage.  

There was some discussion about paving the alley to the west of the property.  

Commissioner Schaeffer said that she wanted to understand the proportionality of the lot 

coverage and impervious lot coverage requests with the existing home and the proposed 

home. She also would like to see a comparison to other recent cases which made similar 

requests.  

Chair Rigoni asked that the figures for the proposed home be compared to the most 

recent case that requested a variation for lot coverage and impervious lot coverage in the 

downtown. She wanted to know how the currently proposed home would look on a lot 

from a previous approval, and whether they would require a similar variance or a greater 

variance on that lot.  

21



 

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 4/27/23 | Page 14 

 

Commissioner Knieriem added that he wanted to see if there was a nearby catch basin 

that the home could connect to. He reiterated that water could be a major issue for 

homeowners in the downtown.  

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any comments regarding the request to use non-masonry 

materials on the first floor of the home.  

Commissioners Knieriem and Markunas said they were comfortable with the proposed 

materials. 

Chair Rigoni thanked the applicant for not proposing white siding, as well as for using 

the proposed metal roof only as an accent. 

There was some discussion around brick chimneys.  

Chris Gruba said there were none.  

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any other comments or questions.  

The builder said that he would look into drainage solutions.  

Chair Rigoni thanked the applicant for submitting renderings of the home, particularly 

those that showed what it might look like along the street. 

Chris Gruba asked if the Plan Commission had any comments about trees.  

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant to do a tree survey, and to include the trees in the right-

of-way. They might be impacted during construction.  

The builder said he intended to remove the right-of-way trees and replace them in kind 

after construction was finished.  

H. Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

I. Village Board & Committee Updates 

Mike Schwarz notified the Plan Commission of two recent Village Board approvals: 

• On April 17th, the Village Board approved the Plat of Resubdivision for 

Lighthouse Pointe. 

Mike Schwarz thanked Chair Rigoni for her work on the Plan Commission and wished 

her well in her new role as Trustee. 

22



122 Walnut

23



117 Maple

24



140 Walnut

25



26



27



28



29



A Custom Home For
Dan & Paige Ruzich

108 Walnut St., Frankfort, IL

INDEX: 

I. Site Plan – Existing and Proposed

II. Plat of Survey

III. Geometric Site Plan – New Home Overlay

IV. Elevations and Floor Plans

V. Rendered Streetscape

VI. Front Elevation Rendering

VII. Color Site Rendering

OWNER:

Dan & Paige Ruzich

13241 Jean Creek Dr.

Orland Park, IL 60462

Dan: 708-267-5965

Paige: 815-630-8077

danruzich4@gmail.com

______________________________

GENERAL CONTRACTOR:

Sleeman Construction, Inc.

Jim Sleeman

10779 Yankee Ridge Dr.

Frankfort, IL 60423

Phone: 815-405-9046

j.sleeman@comcast.net

______________________________

SURVEYOR:

M. Gingerich Gereaux & Assoc.

Brian Hertz

25620 S. Gougar Rd.

Manhattan, IL 60442

Phone: 815-478-9680

bhertz@mg2a.com

www.mg2a.com

______________________________

ARCHITECT:

Ideal Designs, Inc.

Gabriel Garcia

20960 Frankfort Square Rd., Suite A

Frankfort, IL 60423

Phone: 708-407-8028

gabe@idealcustomdesigns.com

www.idealcustomdesigns.com

30

mailto:danruzich4@gmail.com
mailto:j.sleeman@comcast.net
mailto:bhertz@mg2a.com
http://www.mg2a.com/
mailto:gabe@idealcustomdesigns.com
http://www.idealcustomdesigns.com/
cgruba
Received



ZONING DATA
ZONING DISTRICT:

DENSITY, DIMENSIONAL, AND OTHER STANDARDS

REQUIRED MINIMUM

REQUIRED
2.25 MAX.

30 FT.

30 FT.

USE:
R-2 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

DWELLING UNITS:

MINIMUM REQUIRED YARDS:

15,000 S.F.LOT SIZE:
LOT WIDTH: 100 FT. MIN.

REQUIRED
HEIGHT:

BULK DIMENSIONS:

LOT DEPTH: 150 FT. MIN.

35 FT. MAX.

IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 2,550 S.F. MAX (40% MAX.)

GROSS FLOOR AREA: MORE THAN ONE STORY = MIN. 2,600 S.F.

FRONT YARD

SIDE YARD (NORTH)
REAR YARD

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE: 1,275 S.F. MAX. (20% MAX.)

HOUSE GROSS SQ. FT. AREAS
PROPOSEDEXISTING

770 SF 1,475 SFBASEMENT:
FIRST FLOOR:
SECOND FLOOR:
TOTAL GROSS FLOOR AREA (1ST + 2ND):

914 SF 1,622 SF
394 SF 1,641 SF

FRONT STOOP

REAR BRICK PATIO

CONC AT GARAGE

GARAGE

FRONT PROPERTY WALK

12.5' NOT LESS THAN 10 FT. ON ANY SIDESIDE YARD (SOUTH)

27 SF

93 SF

535 SF

49 SF
81 SF

1,308 SF

SHED 58 SF

BASEMENTS: EACH DWELLING UNIT REQUIRES A
BASEMENT EQUAL TO 80% OF THE

GROUND FLOOR AREA OF
THE FIRST STORY

REAR YARD CONC WALK 114 SF

REAR CONC PATIO 70 SF

BUILDING FOOTPRINT AREA:

914 SF

TOTAL: 1,941 SF

12.5' NOT LESS THAN 10 FT. ON ANY SIDE

3,263 SF

0 SF

500 SF

0 SF

BUILDING FOOTPRINT AREA-FIRST FLOOR:

FRONT COVERED PORCH: 110 SF
1,622 SF

41 SF
DRIVEWAY: 501 SF

0 SF
0 SF
0 SF

0 SF

2,881 SF

PROPOSEDEXISTING

COMPLY

COMPLY

NO
YES

COMPLY

NO
YES

NO

YES

YES

NO

NO
NO

ACTUAL (PROPOSED)

8.5'
4.9' & 7.9'

ACTUAL (PROPOSED)

ACTUAL (PROPOSED)

NO

1

6,376 S.F.
50'

32'-4"

21.8'

129.77'

30.7'

1,475 S.F. (100%) YES
3,263 S.F.

2,881 S.F. MAX (45.2% MAX.) NO

2,339 S.F. (36.7%)
(HOUSE, GARAGE, COVERED PORCH & PATIO)

ACTUAL (EXISTING)
1

21.8'

6.1'

50'
129.77'

22 '-4"

1,507 S.F. (23.6%)
(HOUSE, GARAGE, SHED)

6.2'

ACTUAL (EXISTING)

ACTUAL (EXISTING)

1,308 S.F.

1,941 S.F. MAX (30.4% MAX.)

75.04'

770 S.F. (84%)

6,376 S.F.

REAR COVERED PATIO: 107 SF

BUILDING FOOTPRINT AREA TOTAL:

IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE CALCULATION

2,339 SF1,449 SF

BUILDING FOOTPRINT AREA 2,339 SF1,449 SF
PROPOSEDEXISTING

SHEET NUMBER

FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

20960 FRANKFORT SQ. RD.

22088

DESIGNS

06-28-23

SUITE A

A
 C

U
S

TO
M

 H
O

M
E

 F
O

R
S

LE
E

M
A

N
 B

U
IL

D
E

R
S

10
8 

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

T,
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

X

31

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALNUT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#108

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT LESS THAN 10 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE SETBACK LINE 12.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CON PUBLIC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT LESS THAN 10 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE SETBACK LINE 12.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
129.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W NEBRASKA ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALNUT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#108

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT LESS THAN 10 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE SETBACK LINE 12.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CON PUBLIC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT LESS THAN 10 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE SETBACK LINE 12.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
129.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W NEBRASKA ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 NEW DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2FT CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW PATIO BLOCKS WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-OO1

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTS / DESIGNERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T: (708) 407-8028

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV #

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. PER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F: (779) 333-7960

AutoCAD SHX Text
gabe@idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREVIOUS NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FIRM REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.006972

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-30-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
-



32

cgruba
Received



SHEET NUMBER

FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

20960 FRANKFORT SQ. RD.

22088

DESIGNS

06-28-23

SUITE A

A
 C

U
S

TO
M

 H
O

M
E

 F
O

R
S

LE
E

M
A

N
 B

U
IL

D
E

R
S

10
8 

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

T,
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

33

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P. SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CORNER BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X12" BAND BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL GRADE ASPHALT SHINGLES W/50 YR. GUARANTEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"x2" TRIM ON 1"x8" FASCIA BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"x4" FRIEZE BOARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6" WOOD POST TRIMMED OUT TO 10" COLUMN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P. SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CORNER BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT SHINGLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X2" TRIM BD. ON 1"X6" TRIM BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P. SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARD & BATTEN SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOFING SHINGLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X12" BAND BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X8" TRIM BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOFING SHINGLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P. SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X12" BAND BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X8" TRIM BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECT VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P. SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARD & BATTEN SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP SMART SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM. SOFFIT & FASCIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6" WOOD POST TRIMMED OUT TO 10" COLUMN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR COATED ALUMINUM GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"x2" TRIM ON 1"x8" FASCIA BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"x4" FRIEZE BOARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE SHUTTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARD & BATTEN SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X2" TRIM BOARD ON 1"X6" TRIM BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" H. RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CORNER BD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP SMART SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRACKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X2" TRIM BOARD ON 1"X6" TRIM BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE SHUTTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X12" BAND BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT SHINGLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CORNER BD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV: +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV: +/-32'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEFT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTS / DESIGNERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T: (708) 407-8028

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV #

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. PER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F: (779) 333-7960

AutoCAD SHX Text
gabe@idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREVIOUS NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FIRM REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.006972

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-30-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"



SHEET NUMBER

FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

20960 FRANKFORT SQ. RD.

22088

DESIGNS

06-28-23

SUITE A

A
 C

U
S

TO
M

 H
O

M
E

 F
O

R
S

LE
E

M
A

N
 B

U
IL

D
E

R
S

10
8 

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

T,
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

34

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uUNEXCAVATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR AREA: 1,475 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUNEXCAVATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uUNEXCAVATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTS / DESIGNERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T: (708) 407-8028

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV #

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. PER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F: (779) 333-7960

AutoCAD SHX Text
gabe@idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREVIOUS NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FIRM REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.006972

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-30-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
-



SHEET NUMBER

FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

20960 FRANKFORT SQ. RD.

22088

DESIGNS

06-28-23

SUITE A

A
 C

U
S

TO
M

 H
O

M
E

 F
O

R
S

LE
E

M
A

N
 B

U
IL

D
E

R
S

10
8 

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

T,
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

35

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS FLOOR AREA = 1,622 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUEST SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-7"x`5'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-0"x22'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x11'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-4"x11'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-11"x18'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-5"x18'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-7"x5'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x12'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-6"x9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-4"x6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS FLOOR AREA = 1,641 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-11"x17'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x11'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x14'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-11"x13'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-8"x5'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-11"x5'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-3"x9'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-3"x8'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x14'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-11"x5'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-8"x5'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTS / DESIGNERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T: (708) 407-8028

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV #

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. PER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F: (779) 333-7960

AutoCAD SHX Text
gabe@idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREVIOUS NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.idealcustomdesigns.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FIRM REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.006972

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-30-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
-


	Staff Report Packet - Lot 2 and 3 in Iron Gate Estates.pdf
	Aerial.pdf
	Iron Gates Final Plat of Subdivision (1).pdf
	2017-69838 REC ALL 

	16-07005-2 Plat of Survey, Lot 2 Iron Gate Estates.pdf
	16-07005-3 Plat of Survey, Lot 3 Iron Gate Estates.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	16-0001 Lots 2 and 3 consolidation Ph II 20-12-07.pdf
	Plat Review No.1 7-26-23.pdf

	Binder1 - 108 Walnut.pdf
	Staff Report PUBLIC HEARING 8.10.23
	0. 108 Walnut Street Lot and Impervoius Comparison 8.1.23
	1. GIS aerial 1-1500
	1. GIS aerial 1-500
	2. Existing Storm Sewer Map
	2-1. Downtown Boundary Map
	3. Quick Checklist excerpt Comp Plan
	4. Findings of Fact - variance
	5. PC Minutes 4.27.23 (excerpt)
	6. All pics
	Pic - 108 Walnut
	Pic - 117 Maple
	Pic 140 Walnut

	8. Submittal 7.25.23 (minus MG2A Site Plan which was poor copy)
	Slide 1: A Custom Home For Dan & Paige Ruzich 108 Walnut St., Frankfort, IL
	Sheets and Views
	A001

	Sheets and Views
	A2 FOR PRESENTATION

	Sheets and Views
	A3 FOR PRES

	Sheets and Views
	A4 FOR PRES


	8. Site Plan 7.21.23




